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Karin Wolf 
40 Village Green, # 219 
Bedford, NY 10506 
T. 201-450-2192 
karinelenawolf@gmail.com 

 
June 10, 2019 

 
Glenn A. Grant, J.A.D. 
Acting Administrative Director 
Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC) 
Richard J. Hughes Justice Complex 
P.O. Box 037 
Trenton, NJ 08625-0037 
T. 609-815-2900 ext. 55003 
F. 609-943-3255 / 609-984-6968 / 609-376-3002  
webmaster.mailbox@njcourts.gov 
 
David Tang 
Chief, Family Practice Division, AOC 
P.O. Box 983 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
T. 609-815-2900, ext. 55371 
F. 609-376-3021 
 
Re:  Request to Remove Judge; ADA violations; inter alia 
 
Dear Judges Grant and Tang, 
 
I am writing to you regarding Judge Peter J. Melchionne of the Bergen County Family Court, 
who has been the judge in my family court case since April 2018 and my DCF case since 
September 2018.  Also, I am hereby addressing a related issue with Glen Rock Municipal Court, 
the Glen Rock Police Department, the Bergen Surrogate’s Court, and the Bergen County 
Prosecutor’s Office. 
 
While I am mindful that some of the issues I raise here can also be addressed with other offices 
and the Appellate Division, I write to you now because this matter has become an orchestrated 
circus as is the pattern and practice of the Bergen County Court.  The damage is unlikely to be 
timely mitigated by those avenues, per New Jersey’s track record here.1   
 
At this point, I don’t appear in court because I don’t negotiate with terrorists.   

                                                        
1 The Bergen Court recalled Judge Escala (after taking a well-known bribe in the Denike v. Cupo case), dismissed 
my attorney directly before trial, removed my children from me, and the Appellate Division blocked me from 
perfecting an appeal by conditioning it on my ability to pay transcript costs, in violation and contempt of U.S. 
Supreme Court jurisprudence. 
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Since last year, Judge Melchionne has been required to recuse himself yet has been abusing his 
discretion and acting inappropriately in my case without subject matter jurisdiction and violating 
the U.S. Constitution and the American with Disabilities Act, as Amended, and per the Final 
Rule (ADA).   
 
As this office may be aware, I have had a plethora of problems with the justice system in New 
Jersey, particularly Bergen County, with heavy violations of my rights, for which I have sued in 
federal court and blogged extensively about on social media.  Judge Melchionne and the Bergen 
County Court are using this to politically persecute me, including, but not limited to, blocking 
me from my children (I am the only living parent), threatening to terminate my parental rights 
(when there is absolutely no finding of unfitness, abuse or neglect against me), placing an 
unconstitutional Gag Order upon me, and selectively prosecuting me without jurisdiction. 
 
Essentially, I am being tried by the Bergen Court as my adversary in the Bergen Court, a 
kangaroo court and star chamber. 
 
In November 2017, I filed civilian criminal complaints through the Glen Rock Municipal Court 
against my former husband Edward Crane, his short-term wife Luciana Coutinho-Crane, her 
father Plinio Coutinho, and several officers of the Glen Rock Police Department, namely James 
Calaski and Chief Dean Ackerman.  The matter was transferred to Judge Anthony Gallina of the 
Bergen County Superior Court, for conflict of interest.  I was scheduled to testify. 
 
Simultaneously, I filed a civilian criminal complaint against my former husband in the 
Hawthorne Municipal Court for the same incident, as jurisdiction permitted.  Judge John F. 
Meola found probable cause on four counts against my former husband, who was to be 
arraigned.  However, my former husband died before the arraignment. 
 
On April 12, 2018, just prior to my former husband’s death, I filed an emergent application for a 
change of venue2 in the Bergen County Family Court, stating to Judge Melchionne that I recently 
learned my ex-husband was terminally ill; citing abuse and neglect my daughter had disclosed by 
her short-term stepmother Luciana Coutinho-Crane; that I cannot get a fair and impartial hearing 
in Bergen; and that the Bergen is running an illegal trade organization through the family court, 
called the NJ-AFCC (New Jersey Chapter of the Association of Family and Conciliation Courts).  
My application was downgraded to a regular motion. 
 
On April 16, 2018, my former husband died, however Luciana Coutinho-Crane hid his death 
from me.  I learned of it only perchance five days later.  At that point, I became the sole 
surviving custodial parent.  Moreover, as a citizen of the State New York, the children became 
domiciled by operation of law with me in New York.  Matter of Thorne, 240 N.Y. 444. 
 
On April 18, 2018, I made a Request for Accommodations and Modifications pursuant to the  
ADA, to Arthur N. Andreano, Operations Manager, Bergen Vicinage.  One of my requests was a 
change of venue, so as not to exacerbate PTSD caused by the Bergen County Court.  I backed it 
                                                        
2 In Patricia Pisciotti v. Nicholas Pisciotti, Patricia Pisciotti obtained a change of venue where the court cited State 
v. Dalal, NJ Supreme Court (2015) as a precedent.  Patricia Pisciotti’s case is similar to this case in that Ms. Pisciotti 
too has been persecuted for being vocal about her family case in Monmouth County. 
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up with a letter from my medical physician.  Mr. Andreano insisted I sign a HIPAA release as a 
condition to getting accommodations and modifications.  The USDOJ has confirmed that this is 
unlawful and violative of my rights under the ADA.  I refused to sign the release for privacy 
reasons and the Bergen Court denied me ADA accommodations and modifications. 
 
On April 24, 2018, without proper Notice or proper service upon me, the short-term stepmother, 
Luciana Coutinho-Crane, filed an emergent application for custody of my two biological 
children claiming to be the “psychological mother,” making false and misleading representations 
and omissions to the court, in an attempt to get ahold of the estimated 2 million dollar estate my 
children inherited, using the family court as a probate court.  Moreover, the law firm that filed on 
her behalf, Meyerson, Fox, Mancinelli & Conte, P.A., is a law firm I used in the past regarding 
my child custody case with my former husband. 
 
The Order to Show Cause was “rubber-stamped” and included a Gag order; and inexplicably, my 
deceased former husband’s name was handwritten onto the order as a co-defendant.  Judge 
Melchionne was not sitting on the bench that day, but rather at an AFCC conference out of state.  
Moreover, several of Judge Melchionne’s signatures on the orders over the past year do not 
match up, which raise the question - Just who exactly is signing these orders? 
 
In essence, this is a de facto adoption without procedural protections in place, which I have 
repeatedly documented and stated on the record. 
 
Judge Melchionne also gave the appearance of impropriety when he appointed Valerie Solimano, 
Esq. as Guardian ad Litem (GAL), whom he appoints as GAL in nearly every case, and who is 
believed to be having an amorous/sexual affair with Judge Melchionne. 
 
Meyerson, Fox, Mancinelli & Conte, P.A. was conflicted out of representing Ms. Coutinho, but 
is still representing my deceased former husband’s estate in the family case, with Ms. Coutinho 
as the executrix of his estate.  In essence, Meyerson, Fox, Mancinelli & Conte, P.A is still 
representing both plaintiff and co-defendant. 
 
On or around May 7, 2018, I filed a civilian criminal complaint against Judge Peter J. 
Melchionne, Luciana Coutinho-Crane, Valerie Solimano, several officers at the Glen Rock 
Police Department, et al., for kidnapping, extortion, and official misconduct, inter alia.  The 
complaint was transferred to Judge Ernest M. Caposela in Passaic County for conflict of interest.  
However, Judge Melchionne remained on my family case, did not recuse himself, and the case 
has remained in Bergen County. 
 
On or around May 17, 2018, I filed an Order to Show Cause in the Bergen County Surrogate’s 
Court by my attorney Kenneth Vercammen, Esq.  Upon learning of my criminal complaint 
against Judge Melchionne, Mr. Vercammen disqualified himself as my attorney stating that I 
caused conflict by doing so because he was friends with Judge Melchionne.  He then instructed 
the Bergen Surrogate’s Court to pull and destroy the pleadings, “unfiling” them, which the 
Bergen Surrogate’s Court did. I have a letter from the Surrogate’s Court stating such. 
On June 20, 2018, I made another Request for Accommodations and Modifications pursuant to 
the ADA, to Arthur N. Andreano and Laura Simoldoni, Trial Court Administrator.  I backed it up 
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with a declaration and curriculum vitae from my ADA advocate, Dr. Karin Huffer.  Again, Mr. 
Andreano and Ms. Simoldoni insisted I sign a HIPAA release as a condition to getting 
accommodations and modifications.  Again, I refused to sign the release for privacy reasons and 
the Bergen Court denied me ADA accommodations and modifications, memorializing that in a 
signed letter.   
 
In August 2018, my daughter ran away while on vacation with the short-term stepmother in 
North Carolina and asked me to rescue her because Ms. Coutinho-Crane was abusing and 
neglecting her.  We checked in with the police in Virginia a few hours later, who confirmed my 
daughter ran away due to the stepmother’s abuse, and stated my daughter was safe with me, her 
mother.  The Virginia police then communicated to the North Carolina police, and took my 
daughter out of the missing person system. 
 
Unhappy with this, Ms. Coutinho-Crane called her buddies in Glen Rock Police Department, 
who together with Judge Melchionne, had me arrested and incarcerated for custodial interference 
and for contempt of a court order (absent Due Process), before I was able to testify against Judge 
Melchionne and the Glen Rock Police officers for the criminal complaint I had filed against 
them. 
 
Thus, New Jersey does not have jurisdiction, which my public defender Emile Lisboa, Esq. 
brought up in court in September 2018, which the State of New Jersey has shoved under the rug 
in violation of the law that any challenge to subject matter jurisdiction be addressed promptly.   
 
The criminal case against me is not only malicious prosecution, but also selective prosecution, 
given that I had previously gone to the Glen Rock Police and Bergen Prosecutor’s Office upon 
learning of my ex-husband’s death in April, trying to retrieve my children and complaining of 
the stepmother’s interference of my custody of my children.  Bergen County failed to give me a 
speedy trial as required by the Sixth Amendment.  The State of New Jersey has no speedy trial 
statute – if one were to look it up in the New Jersey Rules of Court, one would find a perpetual 
boomerang sidestepping an actual statute. 
 
DCF/DCPP and Judge Melchionne placed my 15-year-old daughter into foster care as 
punishment for sticking to her convictions in alleging child abuse and neglect by her stepmother 
Luciana Coutinho-Crane and Ms. Coutinho’s father Plinio Coutinho (who my daughter alleges 
kicked her and exposed her to various mediums of pornography).  DCPP has no legitimate basis 
for keeping my daughter in foster care – there is no finding of unfitness, abuse or neglect against 
me.  However, DCPP has been vehemently attempting to make a case when none exists, calling 
it “permanency” and going to great lengths to cover up their faults and violations of my family’s 
fundamentally and constitutionally protected right to be a family.   
 
Judge Melchionne has ordered me into a complete violation of my ADA and HIPAA rights -- 
psych evals, parenting classes, therapeutic supervised visitation, therapy where I have zero 
privacy and am, paradoxically, ordered to sign HIPAA releases.   
 
Moreover, DCPP purposely failed to schedule many of the unnecessary reunification services it 
is requiring for my daughter to be returned to me.  What this really is, is punishment for suing 
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the State of New Jersey and exposing corruption in Bergen County.  Donald Trump and David 
Duke can raise their children, but not me? 
 
DCPP and Joanie Kuersi of the Bergen Court failed to notify me of the Child Placement Review 
Board hearing, and have denied my request for a fresh hearing, which in turn deprives me of a 
full, equal, and meaningful opportunity to be heard.  DCPP also failed to inform me of the 
Internal Placement Review (IPR) in a timely manner, telling me approximately 24 hours prior.  It 
is evident that the objective was for me to not be in attendance. 
 
DCPP put me into a psych eval with a psychologist, Dr. Marc Singer, who is an ex-cop, who 
violated my rights under the ADA/ADAAA, and attempted to interrogate me about the 
underlying criminal matter, without a lawyer present, causing me to invoke my Fifth 
Amendment right.  DCPP insists on perverting and skewing the psychological evaluation by 
providing Dr. Singer and Dr. Bromberg with a report from Dr. Allywyn Levine, an evaluator 
who attempted to diagnose me under the DSM-V, without ever having met me. 
 
DCPP has repeatedly ignored my requests for reasonable accommodations and modifications 
under the ADA/ADAAA. 
 
The public defender that the State of New Jersey appointed is useless.  According to Michael 
Lamolino, Esq., “written answers to the State’s application for an Order to Show Cause are not 
usually done.”  This is absurd excuse to let the State of New Jersey steamroll over parents and 
terminate their parental rights without legitimate basis in order to fraudulently claim federal 
funding under the Adoption and Safe Families Act.  Moreover, it is certainly not zealous 
representation, to which I am entitled. 
 
The State of New Jersey has been tampering with a witness via Lydia Tatekawa and Lavar 
Parker of DCPP, who as State actors, have been zealously trying to convince my daughter she 
was “kidnapped” and that I am mentally ill for blogging about family court and CPS corruption.  
That is also a violation of the ADA at 42 USC 12203 - threats, coercion, retaliation. 
 
On December 8, 2018 and February 8, 2019, according to my attorney Lou Lamatina, Esq., 
Judge Melchionne stated in chambers that I was “crazy.”  Accordingly, on February 13, 2019, I 
sent a letter to Judge Melchionne asking him to recuse himself – I had no choice but to do this 
myself because Lou Lamatina (and my useless DCF case public defender attorney Michael 
Lamolino, Esq.) refused to make a proper Motion to Recuse because it would provoke “Judge 
Melchionne’s ire.”   
 
In the letter, I stated: 
 

Such statements, which were done in the presence of attorneys Lou Lamatina, Jay 
Atkins, Amy Lefkowitz, Valerie Solimano, Nada Peters, John Conte, and Michael 
Austin, constitute slander, inherent bias, and implicit bias against me by labeling 
me as “crazy”; and constitute coercion under 42 USC 12203, which Your Honor 
is required to abide by federal law. 
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All counsel must also abide by 42 USC 12100, et seq. under Title II and Title III 
of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as Amended (2008), and per the Final 
Rule (2016) (“ADA/ADAAA”); and their acts of consenting to coercion, 
retaliation, and threats against a person with a disability, including a perceived 
disability under the “regarded as” prong of the ADA/ADAAA are again a 
violation of 42 USC 12203. 
 
At a minimum, pursuant to State of New Jersey Judicial Canons 1, 2, and 3, I do 
not believe Your Honor can be impartial in these proceedings: 
 
RULE 3.6 Bias and Prejudice  
 

(A) A judge shall be impartial and shall not discriminate because of race, creed, 
color, sex, gender identity or expression, religion/religious practices or 
observances, national origin/nationality, ancestry, language, ethnicity, disability 
or perceived disability… 
 

(B) A judge shall require lawyers in proceedings before the judge to refrain from 
manifesting, by words or conduct, bias or prejudice on the bases specified in Rule 
3.6(A), against parties, witnesses, counsel or others. This section does not 
preclude legitimate advocacy when the listed bases are issues in or relevant to the 
proceeding.  
 

(C) A judge shall not, in the performance of judicial duties, by words or conduct 
manifest bias or prejudice, or engage in harassment, including but not limited to 
bias, prejudice or harassment on the bases specified in Rule 3.6(A), and shall not 
permit court staff, court officials or others subject to the judge’s direction and 
control to do so. This section does not preclude reference to the listed bases when 
they are issues in or relevant to the proceeding.  

 
Accordingly, I refused to solidify a financial settlement in the case.  In retaliation, Judge 
Melchionne appointed a GAL for me without a finding of mental unfitness.  Moreover, I have 
not been supplied with any handbook or set of State guidelines as to what GAL’s can and cannot 
do.  Therefore, the appointment of all GAL’s for my children and me is void for vagueness. 
 
Judge Melchionne has continued to make unlawful orders in my cases, allowing all the attorneys 
involved to raid and plunder my children’s trust fund.  In egregious contrast, my requests for 
proper medical insurance for my daughter to deal with her spinal issues (as DCPP’s state health 
plan is garbage) and tuition for her to attend the National Student Leadership Conference this 
summer, where she’s been invited at Ivy League colleges around the country, are blocked by 
Judge Melchionne.  
 
I fired my attorney Lou Lamatina, Esq.  However, Judge Melchionne will not allow me to fire 
and replace any of my attorneys, and Lou Lamatina has informed me that I no longer have these 
decision-making capabilities due to the GAL.  My position is that I have a fundamental right to 
pick and choose an attorney regardless, but more explicitly, where my life and liberty interests 
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are at stake, where the criminal case is based off a family case where there was no Due Process 
to begin with. 
 
Per the foregoing, I demand an investigation into this matter.  I demand that Judge Melchionne 
not only be removed from my case, but from the bench.  He is a threat to public safety. 
 
I demand that the aforementioned cases in New Jersey against me be abated, and that my two 
biological children be returned to me forthwith.   
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Karin Wolf 
 
Susan E. Callaghan 
Assistant Director, Criminal Practice Division 
P.O. Box 982 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
T. 609-815-2900, ext. 55300 
F. 609-815-2919 


